
Appendices No. 6     PFRA & WED    Breach of the Canadian Constitution  
 
The Government of Canada is Constitutionally bound to be; “At Arms 
Length” of Municipalities of a Province.   The below is where Canada 
crossed this line. 
 
We don’t do this sort of thing in this great country, Canada. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The below tells the story.    
 













-----Original Message----- 
From: Pagtakhan, Rey D. - M.P. [SMTP:Pagtakhan.R@parl.gc.ca] 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 2004 11:09 AM 
To: paul clifton 
Subject: RE: Federal Misconduct -  Red River Level Control in Manitoba 
 
Hello, 
 
This is to acknowledge the receipt of your email dated May 6th, 2004. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: paul clifton [mailto:pclifton@mts.net] 
Sent: May 6, 2004 6:26 PM 
To: 'rey.pagtakhan@wed.gc.ca'; Pagtakhan, Rey D. - M.P. 
Cc: 'david.anderson@ec.gc.ca'; Scott, Andy - M.P.; Owen, Stephen - M.P. 
Subject: Federal Misconduct - Red River Level Control in Manitoba 
 
 
Second attempt to send. 
 
Regards 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: paul clifton [SMTP:pclifton@mts.net] 
Sent: Thursday, May 06, 2004 5:22 PM 
To: 'rey.pagtakhan@wed.gc.ca'; 'Pagtakhan.R@parl.gc.ca' 
Cc: 'david.anderson@ec.gc.ca'; 'scott.a@parl.gc.ca'; 'owen.s@parl.gc.ca' 
Subject: Subject: Federal Misconduct -  Red River Level Control in Manitoba 
 
Manitoba File 4967.00 / WED 
 
Mr. Pagtakhan 
 
For expediency, I provide this electronic correspondence to you as the  
current Minister of Western Economic Diversification (WED), copy to David  
Anderson as Minister of the Environment.   Additionally I copy the Minister  
of State (Infrastructure) and Minister of Public Works and Government  
Services.   I request that each named Minister as a courtesy immediately  
acknowledge receipt of this message. 
 
I attach copy of a facsimile dated September 14, 2003 sent to the then  
Deputy Minister of WED Manitoba that has to date not been fully responded  
to.  It is my understanding that this facsimile was immediately forwarded  
by Mr. Buffie when received to HQ in Ottawa.   Ottawa then sent same to WED  
HQ in Edmonton and that is where the record has gone cold. 
 
Mr. Pagtakhan, I am requesting if not demanding that immediate and focused  
attention is given to reply to points 2 and 3 of the facsimile.   Advise  
when I may view the financial records of Canada's complete funding  
contributions to Manitoba under the May 1, 1997 agreement on Red River  
Valley Flood Protection program.  As well, advise when I may expect  
Canada's earliest written and complete reply to my question Number 3. 
 
All of the above is respectfully submitted. 
 



ADM Buffie. WED 
03 09 14.doc

 
 
Regards 
 
PE Clifton 
852 Red River Drive 
Howden, Mb   R5A  1J4 
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Hi Mr. Clifton, 
Yes I have received your email correspondence. 
Thanks 
Patrick 
 
Patrick Cherneski, M.Sc. 
Executive Assistant / Adjoint exécutif 
Office of the Director General / Bureau du Directeur général Agriculture & Agri-Food Canada - PFRA / Agriculture 
et Agroalimentaire Canada - ARAP 
Telephone / Téléphone: 306.780.3133 Fax / Télécopieur: 306.780.6533 
408-1800 Hamilton Street / 408-1800, rue Hamilton 
Regina, Saskatchewan S4P 4L2 
cherneskip@agr.gc.ca 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Clifton, Paul [mailto:peclifton@hydro.mb.ca]  
Sent: Monday, May 16, 2005 11:39 AM 
To: Cherneski, Patrick 
Cc: Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca; jeannette.godin@EC.gc.ca; Marilyn.kapitany@wd.gc.ca 
Subject: RE: [Fwd: Re: Mr. Minister -- As Advised Further Attachments for the Public Record!] 
Sensitivity: Personal 
 
Manitoba EA Project File No. 4967.00 
 
Good Afternoon Mr. Cherneski 
 
I send this correspondence to you from remote and isolated Manitoba, via my Corporate system by necessity. 
 
I seek conformation that you are in receipt of the below e-mail correspondence that was sent to Minister of the 
Environment, The Hon Stéphane Dion and CC'd to you. I am not asking whether you are in agreement with it's 
content, but that you are simply in receipt of the transmission. 
 
Regards 
 
PE (Paul) Clifton 
pandmax@mts.net  
 
>  
> From: "paul clifton" <pclifton@mts.net> 
> Date: 2005/05/15 Sun AM 01:10:30 CDT 
> To: "paul clifton" <pclifton@mts.net>,  
> <stephane.dion@EC.gc.ca> 
> CC: "Vollmershausen,Jim [Edm]" <Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca>, <neggersc@agr.gc.ca>,  
> "Grady, Keith" <Grady.Keith@infrastructure.gc.ca>, <owens1@parl.gc.ca>, <marilyn.kapitany@wd.gc.ca>,  
><Mills.B@parl.gc.ca>,  "Mills, Bob - Assistant 1" <MillsB0@parl.gc.ca>,  
> "John Bertrand" <John_Bertrand@cbc.ca>, <gerald.flood@freepress.mb.ca>, <paul.samyn@freepress.mb.ca>,  
> <pandmax@mts.net> 
> Subject: Re: Mr. Minister -- As Advised Further Attachments for the 
> Public Record! 
>  
> Minister Dion and Others: 
>  
> My last attachment for now, is an e-mail to PFRA HQ, Regina SK cc to Environment Canada's Regional HQ, 
> Edmonton AB. At the bottom of the page is an active link to Manitoba Legislative Hansards of June 7, 2004 
> Committee hearings on Bill 23 - The Red River Floodway Act. 



Attachment to RDG EC       Mr. Vollmershausen    Ms. Godin 
                        DG  PFRA    Mr. Neggers      Mr. Cherneski 
 

>> ----- Original Message -----  
>> From: "Neggers, Carl" <neggersc@AGR.GC.CA> 
>> To: "paul clifton" <pclifton@mts.net>; <Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca> 
>> Cc: <Jeannette.Godin@EC.gc.ca>; "Cherneski, Patrick"  
>> <cherneskip@AGR.GC.CA> 
>> Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2004 12:18 PM 
>> Subject: RE: Manitoba - Greater Winnipeg Floodway Deviation from the Natural 
>> 
>> I received it Paul and thanks 
>> 
>> -----Original Message----- 
>> From: paul clifton [mailto:pclifton@mts.net] 
>> Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2004 2:05 PM 
>> To: Neggers, Carl; 'Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca' 
>> Cc: 'Jeannette.Godin@EC.gc.ca' 
>> Subject: Manitoba - Greater Winnipeg Floodway Deviation from the Natural 
>> Importance: High 
>> 
>> Director General, Neggers and Regional Director General, Vollmershausen 
>> 
>> Thanks for the brief opportunity to sit down with you in Regina yesterday Mr. Neggers,  
>> and allowing me with little notice to further articulate my concerns with regard to federal  
>> activities on Red River flood protection  in Manitoba. I provide below a link to Page No. 1 
>> and Pages 18 to 23 of Hansard records of The Manitoba Legislative Committee hearings of 
>> Bill 23 - The Red River Floodway Act, that I left with you. As promised, I  provide as 
>> additional attachments records of Manitoba's deviation from the "Natural" in floodway  
>> operations since completion of the Red River Floodway in 1968. 
>> 
>> By way of this correspondence to you Mr. Vollmershausen and accompanying 
>> registered mailing in due course, I expect this documentation on historic deviations  
>> through floodway operations to be placed on Environment  Canada's Red River Floodway  
>> historic file. Thank you both for your  requested actions on Upstream residents behalf.  
>> As a courtesy, I request an  electronic acknowledgment of this message from both PFRA 
>> and Environment. 
>> 
>> Manitoba Legislature Hansards Bill 23 - The Red River Floodway Act 
>> available at: >> www.gov.mb.ca/legislature/hansard/2nd-38th/sed_04/sed_04.html 
>> 
>> Regards 
>> 
>> PE Clifton 
>> 852 Red River Drive 
>> Howden, Mb R5A 1J4 
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>  
> Within, all please find the detail by "Paul Clifton" at the 9Min. 30  Sec. Of a ten minute representation, detail of 
> the Breach of the Canadian Constitution through past actions of the former Director of PFRA Manitoba.  
> This Director has since been removed from his Directorship for cause, and has retired. 
>  
> Mr. Grady please acknowledge receipt of this transmission. 
>  
> Regards 
>  
> PE (Paul) Clifton 
>  
>  
> ----- Original Message ----- 
> From: "paul clifton" <pclifton@mts.net> 
> To: <stephane.dion@EC.gc.ca> 
> Cc: "Vollmershausen,Jim [Edm]" <Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca>;<neggersc@agr.gc.ca>; "Grady, Keith" 
<Grady.Keith@infrastructure.gc.ca>; <owens1@parl.gc.ca>; <marilyn.kapitany@wd.gc.ca>; 
<Mills.B@parl.gc.ca>; > "Mills, Bob - Assistant 1" <MillsB0@parl.gc.ca>; "John Bertrand"  
><John_Bertrand@cbc.ca>; <gerald.flood@freepress.mb.ca>; <paul.samyn@freepress.mb.ca>; 
<pandmax@mts.net> 
> Sent: Saturday, May 14, 2005 11:22 PM 
> Subject: Fw: Mr. Minister -- As Advised Further Attachments for the Public Record! 
>  
> > Minister Dion and Others: 
> > 
> > As noted below, now my second transmission complete with five attachments. Mr. Grady, please advise of  
>> receipt of this complete transmission. 
> > 
> > Regards 
> > 
> > PE (Paul) Clifton 
> > 852 Red River Drive 
> > Howden, MB R5A 1J4 
> > 
> > Phone (204) 269-7760 
> > 
> > ----- Original Message ----- 
> > From: "Grady, Keith" <Grady.Keith@infrastructure.gc.ca> 
> > To: <pclifton@mts.net> 
> > Sent: Friday, May 13, 2005 10:40 AM 
> > Subject: RE: Mr. Minister -- Where Is The Money From? 
> > 
> > 
> > Paul 
> > Transmission received. Thank you. K 
> > 
> > Keith Grady 
> > Senior Environmental Coordinator/ 
> > Coordonnateur principale en environnement 
> > Infrastructure Canada 
> > 613-954-1372 / grady.keith@infrastructure.gc.ca 
> > facsimile/télécopieur 613-946-9888 
> > 
> > -----Original Message----- 
> > From: pclifton@mts.net [mailto:pclifton@mts.net] 
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> > Sent: May 13, 2005 11:09 AM 
> > To: stephane.dion@EC.gc.ca 
> > Cc: Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca; neggersc@agr.gc.ca; Grady, Keith; > owens1@parl.gc.ca; 
> > marilyn.kapitany@wd.gc.ca; Mills.B@parl.gc.ca; MillsB0@parl.gc.ca; john_bertrand@cbc.ca;  
> > gerald.flood@freepress.mb.ca; paul.samyn@freepress.mb.ca; pandmax@mts.net 
> > Subject: Mr. Minister -- Where Is The Money From? 
> > 
> >> 
> >> Transmission less attachment, Mr. Grady please confirm receipt of this 
> >> transmission. Regards Paul 
> >> 
> >> 
> >> Minister Stéphane Dion, and Others: 
> >> 
> >> It appears that Canada is intent in funding their way around proper governance in Canada, this also and  
> >> especially being the case in  Manitoba. I provide a supplementary attachment for your record and  
> >> action, with further transmissions to follow. 
> >> 
> >> My second transmission, will be complete with further details of the Breach of the Canadian Constitution by 
> >> Canada. This as it relates to the Canadian Federal Government supposedly being at Constitutional arms  
> >> length to Municipalities of a Province, and in this case, the Rural Municipality of Ritchot. 
> >> 
> >> There is a long and detailed trail of disclosure made to Canada or it's servants of Canada in this regard, again 
>> > formally on or about April 22, 2003 with no favorable resolution. Further more, PM Paul Martin on or 
> >> after February 29, 2004 when formally advised of the brutalization of ten Manitoba families of Canadians, as a 
> >> direct result of Canada's partnered actions, and was incapable of proper and appropriate resolution. 
> >> 
> >> All of this further validating the need for political removal of all Ministers or servants of the Crown, including 
> >> PM Dithers Martin, who are unwilling or unable to protect minority rights under the Canadian Constitution of 
> >> our great country. 
> >> 
> >> Regards 
> >> 
> >> PE (Paul) Clifton 
> >> 852 Red River Drive 
> >> Howden, Manitoba R5A 1J4 
> >> 
> >> Phone (204) 269-7760 
> >> 
> >> > 
> >> > From: <pclifton@mts.net> 
> >> > Date: 2005/05/10 Tue PM 06:00:09 CDT 
> >> > To: <Stephane.Dion@EC.gc.ca> 
> >> > CC: <Jim.Vollmershausen@EC.gc.ca>, <neggersc@Agr.gc.ca> 
> >> > Subject: Mr. Minister -- Where Is The $ 27 M From?? 
> >> > 
> >> > Manitoba EA Project No. 4967.00 
> >> > 
> >> > 
> >> > Winnipeg Free Press Disclosure - $ 27 Million to Final Floodway 
> >> > Engineering Design!!! 
> >> > 
> >> > Minister Dion, I don't what to rain on anyone's parade, though I will if necessary. Is the $ 27 M announced 
>> > > for final Floodway design a fact, and is a penny of it federal dollars? 
> >> > 
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> >> > Does this recent public posturing by the Treasury Board President Minister Reg Alcock not fly in the face of 
> >> >  the ongoing Canada /  Manitoba environmental assessment of the Floodway Expansion project? I don't 
> >> >  threaten but this has got to be fixed in advance of major joint funding and not steam rolled in Manitoba. 
> > >>  Please advise as to whether Infrastructure Canada monies are now into this project. If not, are any portion of 
> >> >  the $ 27 M from another Canadian government source? 
> >> > 
> >> > The Environment Minister's signature of April 26, 2001 after Federally lead misconduct has come home to 
>> > > further haunt us sir.  What will you be doing to make it right? 
> >> > 
> >> > 
> >> > Regards 
> >> > 
> >> > PE (Paul) Clifton 
> >> > 
> >> > 
> >> > > -----Original Message----- 
> >> > > From: pclifton@mts.net [mailto:pclifton@mts.net] 
> >> > > Sent: Wednesday, May 04, 2005 2:01 PM 
> >> > > To: Clifton, Paul 
> >> > > Subject: [Fwd: Response to your e-mail] 
> >> > > 
> >> > > 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > From: Dion,Stéphane [NCR] <Stephane.Dion@ec.gc.ca> 
> >> > > > Date: 2005/05/04 Wed AM 10:38:36 CDT 
> >> > > > To: <pclifton@mts.net> 
> >> > > > Subject: Response to your e-mail 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > Mr. Paul Clifton 
> >> > > > pclifton@mts.net 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > Dear Mr. Clifton: 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > Thank you for your e-mail of December 24, 2004, concerning flood damage from the 1997 Red River  
>> > >> >  flood.   As you already know, the resolution of this matter falls under the jurisdiction of the Province of 
> >> > >>  Manitoba. With respect to the current environmental assessment of the proposed Winnipeg floodway 
 >> > >> >  expansion project, the Departments of Infrastructure Canada and Fisheries and Oceans Canada are  
> >> > > > the responsible federal authorities, as defined under the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act. 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > I have therefore, forwarded a copy of your e-mail to my colleagues, the Honourable John Godfrey,  
> >> > >>  Minister of State (Infrastructure and Communities), and the Honourable Geoff Regan, Minister of  
 > >> > >> Fisheries and Oceans, for their information and consideration. 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > I appreciate your taking the time to write. 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > Yours sincerely, 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > Original signed by: 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > 
> >> > > > Stéphane Dion 
> >> > > 
> >> >  







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
>> 
>> Thanks for the brief opportunity to sit down with you in Regina 
>> yesterday Mr. Neggers, and allowing me with little notice to further  
>> articulate my concerns with regard to federal activities on Red River  
>> flood protection  in Manitoba. I provide below a link to Page No. 1 and Pages 18 to 23 of 
>> Hansard records of The Manitoba Legislative Committee hearings of Bill 
>> 23 - The Red River Floodway Act, that I left with you. As promised, I 
>> provide as additional attachments records of Manitoba's deviation from the 
>> "Natural" in floodway operations since completion of the Red River 
>> Floodway in 1968. 
>> 
>> By way of this correspondence to you Mr. Vollmershausen and accompanying 
>> registered mailing in due course, I expect this documentation on 
>> historic deviations through floodway operations to be placed on  
>> Environment  Canada's Red River Floodway historic file. Thank you both for your  
>> requested actions on Upstream residents behalf. As a courtesy, I  
>> request an  electronic acknowledgment of this message from both PFRA and 
>> Environment. 
>> 
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
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LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA 
 

THE STANDING COMMITTEE ON SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

Monday, June 7, 2004 
 
TIME – 6:30 p.m. 
 
LOCATION – Winnipeg, Manitoba 
 
CHAIRPERSON – Ms. Marilyn Brick (St. Nor-bert) 
 
VICE-CHAIRPERSON – Mr. Bidhu Jha (Radis-son) 
 
ATTENDANCE – 11 – QUORUM – 6 
 
 Members of the Committee present: 
 

Hon. Mr. Ashton, Hon. Ms. McGifford, Hon. Messrs. Sale, Selinger  
 

Ms. Brick, Messrs. Dewar, Faurschou, Goertzen, Jha, Mrs. Mitchelson, Mr. Rocan  
 
APPEARING: 
 
 Hon. Jon Gerrard, MLA for River Heights 
 Mrs. Mavis Taillieu, MLA for Morris 
 
WITNESSES: 
 

Bill 23–The Red River Floodway Act 
 

Mr. L. James Shapiro, Private Citizen 
Mr. Jack Jonasson, Coalition for Flood Protection North of the Floodway 
Mr. Jim Stinson, Private Citizen 
Mr. Robert Duerksen, 768 Association Incorporated 
Mr. Ian Wishart, Keystone Agricultural Producers 
Mr. Paul Clifton, Private Citizen 
Mrs. Maxine Clifton, Private Citizen 
Mr. Doug Chorney, Private Citizen 

 
Bill 10–The Gaming Control Amendment Act 

 
Ms. Valinda Morris, Provincial Council of Women of Manitoba 
Ms. Elizabeth Fleming, Provincial Council of Women of Manitoba 

 
WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS: 
 
 Bill 23–The Red River Floodway Act 
 
 Mr. Gerry Bristow, Private Citizen 
 

Bill 35–The Credit Unions and Caisses Populaires Amendment Act 
 

Mr. Garth Manness, Chief Executive Officer, Credit Union Central of Manitoba 
Mr. Fernand Vermette, General Manager, Fédération des caisses populaires du Manitoba, Inc. 
Mr. Bill Saunders, Chief Executive Officer, Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corp. 
Mr. Claude Bru, General Manager, Société d'assurance-dépots des caisses populaires 
Mr. Bob Lafond, Credit Union Central of Manitoba 
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MATTERS UNDER CONSIDERATION: 
 

Bill 10–The Gaming Control Amendment Act 
Bill 23–The Red River Floodway Act 
Bill 31–The Floodway Authority Act 
Bill 33–The Public Servants Insurance Amend-ment Act 
Bill 34–The University of Winnipeg Amend-ment Act 
Bill 35–The Credit Unions and Caisses Popu-laires Amendment Act 
Bill 38–The Fisheries Amendment Act 

 
*** 

 
Madam Chairperson: Good evening. Will the Standing Committee on Social and Economic 
Development please come to order. 
 
 This evening the committee will be considering the following bills: Bill 10, The Gaming Control 
Amendment Act; Bill 23, The Red River Floodway Act; Bill 31, The Floodway Authority Act; Bill 
33, The Public Servants Insurance Amendment Act; Bill 34, The University of Winnipeg Amendment 
Act; Bill 35, The Credit Unions and Caisses Populaires Amendment Act; and Bill 38, The Fisheries 
Amendment Act. 
 
 We do have presenters registered to speak to Bills 10, 23 and 31. It is the custom to hear public 
presentations before consideration of bills. Is it the will of the committee to hear public presentations? 
[Agreed] 
 
 I will then read the names of the persons who have registered to make presentations this evening. 
On Bill 10, The Gaming Control Amendment Act: Elizabeth Fleming from the Provincial Council of 
Women of Manitoba. On Bill 23, The Red River Floodway Act: Dr. L. James Shapiro, private citizen; 
Jack Jonasson, Coalition for Flood Protection North of the Floodway; Jim Stinson, private citizen; Ian 
Wishart, Keystone Agricultural Producers; Paul Clifton, private citizen; Robert Duerksen, 768 
Association Incorporated; Maxine Clifton, private citizen; Gaile Whelan-Enns, Manitoba Wildlands; 
and Doug Chorney, private citizen. On Bill 31, The Floodway Authority Act: Gaile Whelan-Enns, 
Manitoba Wildlands. 
 
 Those are the persons and organizations that have registered so far. If there was anyone else in the 
audience that would like to register or has not yet registered and would like to make a presentation, 
would you please register at the back of the room; just a reminder that 20 copies of your presentation 
are required. If you require assistance with photocopying, please see the clerk of this committee. 
 
 I understand that we have some out-of-town presenters in attendance this evening. These names 
are marked with an asterisk on the presenters list. Is it the will of the committee to hear from the out-
of-town presenters first? [Agreed] 
 
 We have also been requested to have special consideration for Robert Duerksen. I would like to 
request permission from the committee to move Robert Duerksen from The Red River Floodway Act 
up to No. 4. [Agreed] 
 
Mr. Denis Rocan (Carman): Madam Chair, I wonder if it would be appropriate at this time for you 
to canvass the committee members that when we start working on the bills that are before us this 
evening that there be some sort of a resolution that, once we start, to complete the business that has 
been scheduled for this committee tonight. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Is that the will of the committee? [Agreed] 
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I would also like to inform the committee that written submissions have been received from the 
following individuals and/or organizations: Gerry Bristow, private citizen, on Bill 23; Bob Lafond, 
Credit Union Central of Manitoba, on Bill 35. A copy of these briefs was made for committee 
members and was distributed at the start of the meeting. Does the committee grant its consent to have 
these written submissions appear in the committee transcript for this meeting? [Agreed] 
 
 I would like to inform presenters that, in accordance with our rules, a time limit of 10 minutes has 
been allotted for presentations and 5 minutes for questions from committee members. As well, in 
accordance with our rules, if a presenter is not in attendance, their name will be dropped to the bottom 
of the list. If the presenter is not in attendance when their name is called a second time, their name will 
be removed from the presenters list. 
 
 
 I would also like to advise all in attendance that, in accordance with our rules, if there are fewer 
than 20 people registered to speak at 6:30 p.m., the committee may sit past midnight. I would like to 
advise that as of 6:30 p.m. tonight, there were 11 people registered to speak. Therefore, this committee 
may sit past midnight. 
 
 Just prior to proceeding with public presentations, I would like to advise members of the public of 
the process when it comes time for questions from committee members on your presentation. The 
proceedings of our committee meetings are recorded in order to provide a verbatim transcript. Each 
time someone wishes to speak, whether it be a member of the committee or a presenter, I have to say, 
first, the MLA or the presenter's name. This is the signal for the Hansard recorder to turn your mike on 
and off. Thank you very much for your patience. 
 
 We will now proceed with public presentations on Bill 10, The Gaming Control Amendment Act. 
Excuse me, Bill 23, because it is the out of town presenters, The Red River Floodway Act. 
 

Bill 23–The Red River Floodway Act 
 
Mr. L. James Shapiro (Private Citizen): Madam Chairperson and members of the committee, my 
name is Jim Shapiro and I live at 130 Greenview Road. Greenview Road is just south of the floodway 
in the city of Winnipeg. I have experienced the floods of 1979, 1996 and 1997. The last two floods 
were at my current residence on Greenview Road. From these experiences I can tell you that there is 
only one question that residents in flood-prone areas want to have answered and that question is, "Will 
I get wet?" If the answer is "yes," then the potential flood victims two greatest fears become loss of 
life and loss of personal possessions. When someone loses their personal possessions they lose their 
history. They lose the mementos that contribute to, if not define, who they are and where they have 
come from. There can be no compensation for loss of life or one's personal possessions. For all else, 
however, compensation becomes very important. 
 
 Bill 23 deals with this issue. I feel that changes in the bill's wording, or lack of wording, would 
improve its effectiveness. Now, unfortunately, the answer to the resident's question, "Will I get wet?" 
is, "Yes, in all probability you will get wet." Why? With the current strategies being employed by the 
Province of Manitoba, an individual can either put their home on a pad or they can surround their 
residence with a permanent ring dike. The latter is usually in the form of a horseshoe with an access 
available for vehicles and service units. In many cases, however, neither of these options is chosen or 
these options are not available to the homeowner, instead sandbags are relied upon to protect the 
residence. None of these solutions are foolproof, efficient or safe which means that compensation will 
be required. For the Province and other funding agencies it becomes expensive and just another way 
of saying, "We were not there for you." 
 
* (18:40) 
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 Which brings me to Bill 23. It is my understanding that compensation will be based upon the 
homeowner's actions to protect his or her property. However, there are instances when the best course 
of action is to evacuate your house completely and let the floodwaters come in unimpeded and then 
wait for them to recede. For many reasons this is the most cost-effective way of preserving life and 
one's personal possessions. The secret to successfully fighting a flood in the Red River Valley is to be 
prepared to evacuate your house, have a plan by which this can be done, and to have a designated 
storage site for your personal belongings. 
 
 Bill 23 makes no provision for such a course of action. If one's house is not on a pad, or if it is not 
surrounded by a ring dike, then one has the option of not using sandbags. There are good reasons for 
not using sandbags. You cannot build the sandbag dike on frozen ground. The sandbags can freeze, 
rendering them useless, but, more importantly, the frozen earth under the dike will thaw when the 
warmer water above it covers it. Then the water seeps inevitably under the sandbag dike and enters the 
home through the window wells, from then on it is game over for the homeowner. 
 
 In order to build a proper sandbag dike during a flood of 1997 or greater proportions, a shallow 
trench must be dug in the ground before the dike is erected and sandbags placed in it. That way, after 
the dike has been completed and when the warm water thaws the frozen ground the water cannot seep 
under the dike. However, Madam Chairperson, remember we are in a flood situation. Time is of the 
essence. The ground in frozen and no homeowner has the equipment to dig a trench in the frozen 
ground all around one's house. 
 
 So the proper method of constructing a sandbag dike is not available to the homeowner. Now, 
sandbags placed on top of existing dikes or used to close up an opening in a permanent dike are also 
not desirable and they are not safe. The force of the water at the junction of the sandbags and the 
permanent dike is a weak link in the dike and it will collapse.  
 
 Bill 23 does not provide for a situation where compensation will be granted if a homeowner does 
not have a pad or a ring dike and does not use sandbags to protect his or her home. However, there are 
advantages to not using sandbags. There will be no damage done by inexperienced volunteers 
attempting to build a sandbag dike. There will also be no damage done by heavy equipment coming 
onto soft ground, after the flood, to remove that which the volunteers inefficiently and inappropriately 
built.  
 
 There are also situations such as my own, where the government does not allow the building of a 
permanent dike around the house or placing the house on a pad. For me, the only suggested alternative 
is a temporary sandbag dike which, as I have just explained, is totally useless.  
 
 Now I have a plan of action that allows me to know what moving company will pack up my 
personal possessions, where the designated storage site will be, where I will stay during the flood, and 
how I will be able to return to my property even before the repairing and replacing of my house 
begins. However, I will not be doing anything of a physical nature apparent to the public. That puts 
me in a position of being accused of not trying to protect my property and disqualifying me for 
financial compensation. This situation should not be allowed to occur.  
 
 I am suggesting to you that Bill 23 make provision for homeowners to register a plan of action 
with the Disaster Assistance Appeal Board or the Emergency Measures Organization, prior to any 
flooding, so that alternative flood-proofing methods can be approved by them and assure the 
homeowner that he or she will not risk the loss of compensation.  
 
 Now with respect to the wording of Bill 23, I have seven concerns. If you have the bill in front of 
you, I would suggest that you might want to look at it and follow along as I discuss particular parts of 
the bill.  
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 My first concern is in Part 2, titled Compensation For Artificial Flood Damage and Economic 
Loss, subsection 2(c) and 3(a) and 3(b). These subsections refer to flood-proofing criteria as defined in 
the designated flood area regulation. However, this regulation pertains to the construction of new 
buildings, not to the protection of existing buildings. Compensation in Bill 23 should encompass 
damage to existing buildings as well.  
 
 My second concern is also in Part 2.4(3), and is titled Claimant's acts may affect compensation. 
This subsection deals with the very situation I have previously outlined. This subsection states that 
"compensation may be reduced in whole or part if the claimant's acts or failure to act allowed the 
damage or loss to occur or contributed to its occurrence." Bill 23 must be very careful not to penalize 
homeowners who have acted responsibly to protect lives and their home and property, while at the 
same time minimizing the cost of doing so.  
 
 According to Bill 23, such a determination will be made by personnel from the Emergency 
Measures Organization, which brings me to my third concern, also in Part 2.3(2), titled Emergency 
Measures Organization determines claims.  
 
 This subsection has serious deficiencies associated with its intent. After a flood, the EMO 
employs untrained, part-time, inexperienced personnel to investigate claims made by homeowners. 
EMO has no front-line, experienced personnel trained in the complexities of evaluating flood damage. 
Its guidelines exist on paper. It is a top-down approach to the resolution of a flood victim's claim. I 
suggest that it should be a bottom-up procedure, with the EMO training homeowners as a standard 
operating procedure, say, associated with obtaining one's homeowner's insurance–  
 
Madam Chairperson: Doctor Shapiro, you have 30 seconds left.  
 
Mr. Shapiro: –buttressed with required evidence confirming a plan of action, a moving company 
hired or on retainer to remove one's personal belongings and to store them for the duration of the 
flood. A place to stay and a plan of action to account for one's activities after a flood all contribute to a 
population of potentially flood-prone residents who know what to do, and who are confident that there 
will be no loss of life or loss of personal possessions. These homeowners are less likely to panic– 
 
Madam Chairperson: Doctor Shapiro, if you could conclude your remarks, please. 
 
Mr. Shapiro: I will stop now, Madam Chairperson, and distribute copies of my presentation.  
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much. Are there questions? 
 
Hon. Jon Gerrard (River Heights): Thank you for the presentation and for some clear 
recommendations to improve the legislation. Maybe you would comment about your experience in 
using sandbags. Clearly, you have had some not very positive experience, from the sound of your 
comments. 
 
Floor Comment: The experience with sandbags is exactly as I– 
 
Madam Chairperson: I have to recognize you, Doctor Shapiro. 
 
Mr. Shapiro: Madam Chairperson, through you, the experience that I have had indicates that you 
cannot use sandbags in our climate when the ground is frozen. Using sandbags with warm water 
engulfing the home that you are trying to protect, because the warm water thaws the ground under the 
dike and the water, through the force of the pressure of the water above it, will force that water under 
the dike and into the window well of the home, flooding the home. 
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 Therefore, the only way to make sure that everything in that house is safe and secure is to get rid 
of it. What I am suggesting is that as an alternative to using sandbags, if that is not advisable, that Bill 
23 recognize that there are alternative ways of protecting one's life, protection of livestock and home 
possessions.  
 
 One can submit that plan to EMO or the Disaster Assistance Board, have it approved, carry out 
your plan and you qualify for compensation. If you do not do that, then I can tell you that the plan as 
outlined now by EMO is going to be more expensive. 
 
 You are going to have a house filled with water with 90 000 sandbags around it, with volunteers 
who do not know how to build a dike and a panicked homeowner who also does not know how to 
build a dike. You are going to have heavy equipment coming across your lawn which will not be 
compensated because you are only compensated for the land under the dike. It will be hugely 
expensive.  
 
 Also remember the problem with flooding in Manitoba is not the flooding. The problem is letting 
homeowners be aware of what they have to do. If they know what they have to do, then calm prevails. 
They have a plan of action. They carry it out. They get out of there. The government has less compen-
sation to provide for these homeowners because there are less of their possessions that are ruined. 
 
* (18:50) 
 
 So what I am suggesting is that Bill 23 encompass alternative plans of saving one's home, have 
them approved and it may even be legislated so that this has to be part of one's homeowner's 
insurance. Then, every two or three years, just as you have to have your licence to drive renewed, you 
have to demonstrate you have a plan of action. You have a carrier hired, or on retainer, to empty your 
house. You have a place to stay. You know what you are going to do after the flood.  
 
 Now, the government's role is to make sure that homeowners in a flood-prone area are prepared. 
You do not leave homeowners as susceptible to panic, to worry, to not knowing what to do because 
the time to fight a flood is not during the flood, it is now, before the flood. 
 
Mr. Kelvin Goertzen (Steinbach): Mr. Shapiro, thank you for your presentation. I wonder if you 
could comment a little further on section 32 where you make comment that, perhaps, quite apart from 
the bottom-up approach of flood planning, there must still be somebody who does an assessment of 
damage. You raise some concerns perhaps about EMO doing the assessment. If you could provide us 
some indication of who you think might be better for that. Do you have concerns as well with the 
government not allowing appeal outside of the EMO process? 
 
Madam Chairperson: Doctor Shapiro, you have about 45 seconds to answer. 
 
Mr. Shapiro: It has been my experience that the EMO is a paper organization. It plans for disasters, 
but after the disaster occurs and I, the homeowner, am now in my home asking for someone to assess 
the damage, those individuals are not trained. They are part time. They are inexperienced. They want 
to get into the public service. They do not have a job. They get into the public service; they find that it 
is too much; they quit. All of a sudden, I have a new assessor on my hands and we have to start all 
over again.  
 
 What I am suggesting is, as I have outlined here, the homeowner should be able to say, "Hey fella, 
you are not competent. I want another assessor." Also, where the government is protected by this 
legislation later on, and I did not have an opportunity to discuss that, you should not protect yourself 
from incompetence because your incompetence is putting my life in jeopardy. It is destroying my 
future. My present is gone. The past is rendered useless. I should be able to sue you in a court of law if 
you send me an incompetent assessment. 
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Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much for your presentation, Doctor Shapiro. 
 

Bill 23–The Red River Floodway Act 
 

Madam Chairperson: The committee will now revert to Bill 23, The Red River Floodway Act, and 
the next presenter is Jack Jonasson from the Coalition for Flood Protection North of the Floodway and 
he has indicated that he is from out of town. 
 
Mr. Jack Jonasson (Coalition for Flood Protection North of the Floodway): Not that far out of 
town. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Mr. Jonasson, do you have presentations to distribute to the committee 
members? 
 
Mr. Jonasson: There are several up here. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Okay. Please proceed. 
 
Mr. Jonasson: Madam Chair, committee members and fellow presenters, I am going to make some 
general comments about the bill first, the concerns that we have, those of us who live north of the 
floodway. We had asked for compensation to be considered, not just for what this bill addresses, 
which is artificial flooding, but if you are going to protect Winnipeg from a 1-in-700-year flood, what 
are you going to do for the rest of us who are outside the protection of that floodway? When it was 
announced that there would be a compensation bill, our hearts were filled with the generosity of the 
government. However, on reading the bill, it appears that from the content of this act it is more about 
protecting the government and its agencies and employees from court action, regardless of how 
negligent and/or incompetent, from blame or consequence then it is about developing a system to treat 
those not protected by the construction of the floodway in a fair and reasonable manner. 
 
 The fact that this act speaks only to artificial flooding caused by construction and/or operation of 
the floodway demonstrates very clearly that the framers of this bill have little understanding of the 
many and varied impacts that the floodway will have on those living outside its protection and in the 
path of its construction. 
 
* (19:10) 
 
 On asking for compensation, our group was expecting that if the government was protecting some 
of the residents of the Red River basin from a 1-in-700-year event, it would find ways to compensate 
those it chose not to or could not protect to that level. Compensation methods may include buying 
property that cannot be protected; purchasing easements, that is, the right to store water on land that 
cannot be protected and will be used to protect other lands from flooding; or, in lieu of flood 
protection, a one-time compensation that will allow continued use of the land with severe restrictions 
on land use and construction, but forever excluding further compensation. 
 
 The way in which those outside the protection of the new and expanded floodway have been dealt 
with historically and now there is this law which in essence is not a new concept because historically 
the law against flooding your neighbour is a long-standing law in Canada. The government, if they 
artificially flood anyone, is obliged under existing law to provide compensation. The only thing new 
in this law is that it strips away the right of access to the courts to those harmed by the actions of the 
government and its agencies. 
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 I would like to now go through some of the provisions. No. 1, this proposed act speaks only to 
artificial flooding. We want to know what is proposed to do with other effects of the floodway 
expansion, i.e., damage to the aquifer, interruption of municipal services, ambulance, fire, student 
transportation, other municipal services like road maintenance, surface drainage. What of the loss of 
revenue to the municipalities from lands expropriated to build the floodway, and why the name? 
Would not the principles and conditions here in this proposed law apply to any like situation anywhere 
in Manitoba, that is, a hydro dam, the Portage diversion, drainage ditches. It should all be the same. 
 
 Then when we get into the definitions at the beginning of the act, it talks about natural level. This 
is not defined in the act. We want to know what it is and how it is calculated. The government is 
obliged, according to this act, to compensate people only if they artificially flood them.  
 
 Ladies and gentlemen, historically the people north of the floodway have been told they are not 
adversely affected by the operation of the floodway. Well, the historic record indicates that, in fact, 
they are. We need a way to have that recognized. If the government says we were not artificially 
flooded, they do not have to compensate us. 
 
 Extreme spring floods. There is a section there that talks about extreme spring floods upstream of 
the floodway. It never mentions downstream. Well, we are also there, and we get extreme floods too. 
As a matter of fact, we had floods downstream this year when nobody else had extreme floods. 
 
 Rules of operation. The legislation must clearly state how these rules are developed, who is 
involved in the process and the consequences of not acting according to those rules. This is as crucial 
to establishing a fair and reasonable process to deal with compensation, as is the definition of natural 
level. 
 
 In part 2.2(1)(b), there is mention of the development of regulations by the Lieutenant-Governor-
in-Council. Well, how can we comment on this bill if we do not know what those regulations are? It 
may be fine. Maybe the concerns that I have and members of our coalition have are unfounded, but in 
the regulations we do not see. 
 
 There are questions in 2.2. What is the difference between real and personal property? What about 
intellectual property? 
 In 2(2)(c) it talks about the government being exempt from compensating someone if they have 
not dealt properly with flood proofing their property. The problem is we are talking about artificial 
flooding. There is no requirement to protect your property from artificial flooding. It does not apply, 
should not apply. 
 
 There is a section that says compensation is provided only if the economic loss occurs in 
Manitoba. What about a contractor who has a contract to do work in Ontario, but his equipment is 
drowned in a flood because he is resident in the basin of the Red River? 
 
 Emergency Measures Organization determines claims, 3(2)(b), EMO determines whether artificial 
flood damage to property and whether it is eligible property. I ask what is the expertise available to 
EMO to make this determination. 
 

Madam Chairperson: Mr. Jonasson, you have one minute remaining. 
 
Mr. Jonasson: Many residents north of the outlet have been turned down by government for 
assistance in flood protection because it was determined they did not reside within the flood plain, this 
despite the fact that they have flooded and will continue to be flooded. We have no idea as to who and 
how those determinations were made. Furthermore, there is an appeal process. This, again, is done by 
the same agency, EMO, who is under the same ministry. I think this is a classic case of conflict of 
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interest, particularly when the act says you have no appeal after appeal to the EMO. This does not 
make sense to me. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Mr. Jonasson, if you could conclude your presentation, please. 
 
Mr. Jonasson: I guess our concerns are with the whole concept of this act. It does not address any of 
the concerns that we, as residents north of the floodway, put forward to the various hearings that were 
held in January 2002. It misses the point altogether and it does not provide compensation. It provides 
protection from the government. 
 

Madam Chairperson: Thank you, Mr. Jonasson. Are there questions for Mr. Jonasson from the 
committee?  
Hon. Jon Gerrard (River Heights): I want to say thank you for your presentation. You have been 
quite thorough in reviewing this, and I would like to ask you to comment briefly on the phrase 
"natural level," what it means or does not mean and what it should mean if it is going to be in this 
legislation. 
 
Mr. Jonasson: It is a theoretical construct. It does not exist. It basically says that the government is 
not obliged to compensate people if, in fact, they would have been flooded to that level anyway.  
 
 Now, how do you calculate this mythical construct called natural level? It is a level that the water 
in the river would have existed at during a flood, were there no floodway or were there no dikes or 
were there no whatever.  
 
 I do not know how they can calculate this, but they have apparently been confident enough to use 
this in the act. I think this would have to be worked out by a very, very extensive cross section of 
academics, engineers and people who have experienced what happened in the floodway. A good 
example is we are always told north of the floodway that you would get all that water anyway, so why 
are you complaining? 
 
 Do you know, ladies and gentlemen, in 1826, all of the water did not flow down the river through 
Selkirk? A good portion of it went around Selkirk, west through the bog, a river as much as three 
miles wide, six miles long, a huge amount of water that now has to go by Selkirk.  
 
* (19:20) 
 
 It also went east of Birds Hill into the watersheds of Devils Creek and Cooks Creek. So all of the 
water did not go by Selkirk. All of the water now has to go by Selkirk. So how do you define natural 
level? I do not know. I think it is a mythical concept.  
 
Hon. Steve Ashton (Minister of Water Stewardship): Thank you, and if I could, as we were out of 
time last time, I would also like to thank Doctor Shapiro for his presentation. I know he is certainly 
correspondent with the department and myself, and I want to indicate that I will be responding in 
writing to many of the issues that were raised. I just do not have the time to get into all of them, and I 
certainly appreciate that.  
 Also, I would like to thank Mr. Jonasson. I can indicate to Mr. Jonasson in terms of natural levels 
that I think Mr. Jonasson is aware we are–in fact, we have a specific engineering study that has been 
ongoing to make sure that there is a current scientific definition of natural flooding. I certainly 
encourage him to participate at the hearings and put forward any issues or concerns of that nature. 
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 We have a well-known engineering company here which is looking at that, and I certainly 
appreciate that that is key to this bill, which is aimed at compensation for flooding above natural 
levels, as compared to what I would call non-artificial flooding, if you like, which is covered by 
Disaster Financial Assistance. 
 
 So I did want to thank Mr. Jonasson. I realize we are short of time, so I do not really have a 
chance to ask detailed questions on a lot of the points that were raised, but, certainly, if you are 
interested, I would be more than happy to provide you with the latest information on the natural level 
issue, which I know we have discussed directly at our previous meetings. So, thank you. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much for your presentation. 
 
Mr. Jonasson: I have a handout and it addresses a lot more issues in the bill. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much. 
 
 Our next presenter is Jim Stinson, a private citizen. Mr. Stinson, do you have a handout for the 
committee? 
 
Mr. Jim Stinson (Private Citizen): I apologize, Madam Chairperson, I do not.  
 
Madam Chairperson: Okay, please proceed.  
 
Mr. Stinson: I did not have a photocopier at home and I did not believe it was available. 
 
Madam Chairperson: That is fine. Please proceed. 
 
Mr. Stinson: Madam Chairperson, members of the Legislature, first off, I want to thank you very 
much for the opportunity of speaking on this bill. I am just a private citizen. I am not an engineer or 
anything like that. I am just a resident of the R.M. of St. Clements. 
 I have lived in the R.M. of St. Clements since 1990. First, I would like to say that I hope Bill 23 
never has to be used, but, in the event it does, I believe that some areas must be addressed and/or 
clarified. If you have the bill with you, in front of you, it may help assist when we go through it. 
 
 The first thing is definitions. Under definitions of the act, No. 1. "artificial flooding," part (a), 
"caused by floodway operation during spring flooding." When are the dates for spring? They are not 
pointed out. Why is this Bill 23 limiting it to springtime? Anytime the floodway is in operation should 
be covered. The floodway, in fact, operates in the summer, and a deadly example of when it was 
operating was in August of 1993, when a gentleman drowned at the outlet of the floodway when it 
was in full operation. That is not springtime operation, the way I would look at it, I suggest.  
 
 Part (b), "in which the Red River exceeds its natural level at the time of the event." Like was 
mentioned before, what is the natural level? As late as April of this year at a floodway expansion 
presentation in St. Norbert, Mr. McNeill of the floodway expansion authority admitted that there were 
in fact some discrepancies now as to what natural level actually is.  
 
 The next definition on the next page, "rules of operation means the rules of operation of the 
floodway control structure approved by the minister under The Water Resources Administration Act." 
 
 Twice now, I personally have asked the Floodway Authority for the present-day rules of operation 
and still have not received them. With the proposed floodway expansion, I understand that there will 
be new rules of operation. Does this proposed Bill 23 pertain to the present day rules of operation or 
under the expanded floodway? 
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 I will quickly move to part 2.2(1) deals with claims for artificial flooding and economic loss; 
2.2(2) deals with eligibility of property; 2.2(3) deals with "eligible economic loss." In all three 
subsections, Bill 23, the word "artificial" is used. I have great difficulty with this word "artificial". If 
the damage caused by the Red River Floodway is to compensate all Manitobans, as Minister Ashton 
indicated in his press release, then one would believe that any flooding caused by the operation of the 
floodway would be compensated.  
 I live approximately three miles northeast of the floodway and draw my water from the aquifer 
below me. A lot of people are not aware of the aquifer. The aquifer is the water we get from down 
below. I served 30 years with the RCMP and retired six years ago, at which time I turned down a 
physical move to anywhere in Canada, completely paid for by the government, strictly because of the 
quality of life that I had living in the province of Manitoba, in specifically the R.M. of St. Clements. 
We have horses and therefore quality of water is not only important for human consumption, but 
animals as well.  
 
 In none of these subsections do I see anything to deal with one's quality of life being affected due 
to the operation of the floodway. I would like to expand on this quality of life and the Red River 
Floodway. In Minister Ashton's press release, he indicated that The Red River Floodway Act would 
provide a legislated right to compensation for Manitobans.  
 
 The original floodway was built in 1968. The aquifer was breached in at least four locations for 
several miles. This causes contaminants from the Red River going through the floodway, being 
subjected to my aquifer, to the water in front of you people. That is the type of water it is subjecting to 
me. When speaking with members of the floodway expansion, they advised that if drinking water or 
the aquifer were contaminated then they would possibly have to drill wells deeper. This brings into 
focus the quality of water and the quality of life again. 
 
 There are several sites in Manitoba where due to contamination people have to haul water. If this 
was to happen, my quality of life and several of my neighbours would be greatly affected with Bill 23. 
As it is written today, we would not be compensated. I would just like to mention one thing for my 
uncle, who lives at Breezy Point, 2.2(4), exception to eligibility of certain property. Residents of 
Breezy Point were required to sign a waiver preventing them from any compensation due to flooding 
as they were residing on a flood-prone area. These are 21-year leases. Minister Ashton in his press 
release for Bill 23 mentioned that $110 million was provided to residents of the valley to improve 
protection.  
 
 The residents of Breezy Point were refused any funding to protect their property when this 
program was in operation. Now, with the proposed expanded floodway, they will be subjected to 
additional flooding, still with no funding for flood protection or compensation under Bill 23. 
 
* (19:30) 
 
 Under section 7, it says, "no court proceedings for compensation." I find this section very 
discriminatory and if Bill 23 is supposed to be implemented to protect the residents of Manitoba, why 
would such a section be required? I feel section 7 should be completely removed.  
 
 The last area is under part 3.9(1), extreme spring flooding declaration. It says, "on the advice of 
the director, or that an extreme spring flooding is occurring or that to occur, the minister may make an 
extreme spring flooding declaration. The declaration takes effect when it is made." End of the section. 
 
 Again, this points to rules of operation and natural level, which I have addressed previously, and 
must be clarified. Thank you very much for your time and your interest in such a bill. 
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Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Stinson. Are there questions for Mr. Stinson? 
 
Mr. Gerrard: Thank you. You bring up some important points with regard to the quality of life which 
I think would need to be better considered than they have been. You also talk about the, I think it is 
section 7, which deals with the appeal mechanism and I would like you to comment a little bit further 
on, I mean, this seems, you know, to make it very difficult, particularly if there is not a clear definition 
of what is artificial flooding and what is natural levels.  
 
Mr. Stinson: Section, section, this is very awkward bending forward like this. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Mr. Stinson. Sorry. Just a moment. Mr. Stinson, go ahead. 
 
Mr. Stinson: It is very awkward in this stepping forward here. Section 7 says, "no court proceedings 
for compensation." I spent 30 years in the RCMP, 15 years specializing in immigration dealing with 
people all around the world. In any democratic country, the courts were always open to people This 
act removes it from us. It takes our democratic right away from us–[interjection] I am not a lawyer 
but–I am sorry. 
Madam Chairperson: Excuse me, there is no participation from the gallery. Thank you. You may 
continue, Mr. Stinson. Did you want to continue? 
 
Mr. Stinson: I apologize, sorry. I am not a lawyer, but I have dealt with laws and dealing and reading 
in the act, and in 30 years of police, and a lot of you people, or even some of you are quite a few years 
younger than I am, have you ever seen a law being taken off the books? No. We put laws on the books 
continually. The way this bill is written, Mr. Ashton, I thank you very much for trying to protect us, 
but the way this thing is written, it is not protecting us at all. It is a useless act. I am sorry. I apologize. 
We do not need more acts just to have paper. We need to be protected. 
 
Mr. Ashton: Thank you and I appreciate your presentation and I can indicate I know some concerns 
have been expressed about the particular section you referred to in terms of appeal mechanisms and I 
would anticipate once we are finished the hearings, we will be discussing some potential amendments 
and certainly we are looking at an amendment that would provide some avenue in terms of appeals. 
 
 The other thing I wanted to really stress too, by the way, is the good point you raised about the 
impact on ground water. We have tried very much, through the design of this project, to include that 
as a major factor. As you are probably aware, we were originally looking at up to six feet of depth for 
the floodway. It is now two feet or less and the engineering model has now shifted very dramatically 
for one reason and one reason only, and that is that we said, yes, we have to provide the flood 
protection but we also have to look at the ground water impacts. 
 

 You are quite right about what happened in the 1960s and, of course, in those days, there were no 
environmental assessments. People did not know what was going to happen, but we know that ground 
water was impacted, so I can assure you that not only are we designing the project for flood 
protection, we are going to minimize ground water impacts and, certainly, there is mitigation built in 
for that. 
 
 I realize that is sort of beyond the scope of the bill but I could not agree with you more. I know 
that is a huge impact and I do thank you for going through this. It is a rather technical bill and I 
appreciate your perspective, particularly your background in law enforcement. I am sure you have 
dealt with many bills in the past on the receiving end of implementing it so we certainly appreciate 
your advice. 
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Mr. Stinson: Madam Chair, if I could just speak to Mr. Ashton. 
 
 Thank you, Mr. Ashton. That is correct. They have got it down from the 2000 report. They were 
going to go three metres and now it is down to two feet, two feet, two inches. The aquifer is still 
breached, so every time the floodway is used, my aquifer is subjected to the contaminants. I asked the 
engineering firm if they could find a way of sealing it, and they said they did not know but they were 
going to find out. But if they do not, how do we get compensated? 
 
 Thank you very much. I appreciate your time. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Stinson. 
 
 Mr. Robert Duerksen, 768 Association Incorporated. Mr. Duerksen, do you have a presentation to 
distribute to the committee? 
 
Mr. Robert Duerksen (768 Association Incorporated): Yes, I do, and I would like to hand it out 
after my presentation, if that is all right. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Please proceed then, Mr. Duerksen. 
 
Mr. Duerksen: I represent the 768 Association Incorporated. The 768 Association Incorporated is a 
corporation that represents 27 property owners directly south of the floodgates. We are a unique 
organization in the fact that some of our members are located in the R.M. of Ritchot and some are 
located in the city of Winnipeg. Because of our close proximity to the flood control works, we are 
very interested and concerned with the proposed legislation, as well as the Floodway Expansion 
Project in general. 
 
 On May 10 our association wrote the Honourable Steve Ashton and provided our comments in 
response to the draft summary of the draft legislation that was provided to our association earlier in 
the year. My presentation here tonight is basically to pull out six points from that letter that we wrote, 
and just to put those points in a nutshell. 
 Number 1. The 768 Association is concerned that the legislation says that a flood report may be 
available to the public. It is our position that a flood report must be available to the public every year 
and whenever it is written. 
 
 Number 2. It is our position that an independent group must determine if artificial flooding was 
created. The wording of the legislation right now is that it is the government that determines whether 
artificial flooding is created. This cannot be the case. The 1997 flood was a very good example of how 
it took the government a whole year-and-a-half and extreme pressure before they ever admitted, after 
countless times coming out, I remember the Premier (Mr. Doer) standing on TV saying that there was 
no artificial flooding created, basically lying to the public, it took them a year-and-a-half before the 
truth finally came out. It is just a good example of how, if you do leave it up to the government to 
determine if artificial flooding is created, you might not necessarily get the truth. There has to be an 
independent group established with fair representation from outside the city of Winnipeg. 
 
 Number 3. The rating curve must be part of the legislation by which artificial flooding is 
determined, or at least a process by which the rating curve is determined must be identified in the 
legislation. There has to be public involvement and public scrutiny as to how this rating curve is 
determined. To date, the Manitoba Floodway Expansion Authority has rolled out a new rating curve 
and there has been no public involvement and there has been no public scrutiny of that rating curve. 
We are asked to trust the government that these are the natural levels. There must be public 
involvement and it must be tied to the legislation. There must be consensus on what natural levels are 
and how they are determined. 
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 Number 4. The legislation requires existing properties to be flood proofed ahead of time but it is 
not clear what this entails or, as a previous presenter has mentioned, it is not broad enough in its 
definition of what flood proofing could be. 
 
 Number 5. The proposed legislation precludes litigation as a last resort. It is our position that this 
is contrary to the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms. The Canadian Charter of Rights and 
Freedoms provides equal protection and equal benefit under the law. One might think that this is equal 
or the same as no-fault Autopac insurance but it is our position that this is very different. No-fault 
Autopac insurance is applied equally to all citizens across the board in the province of Manitoba. This 
legislation, if it were to go through, would not allow certain segments of the population the right to 
sue if they were caused damage. So again, it our belief that it is contrary to the Canadian Charter of 
Rights and Freedoms. 
 
 Number 6. There are more ways of causing artificial flooding than are described in the legislation. 
Other presenters have spoken to this point here tonight. For example, ice jams caused by gate 
operations. That has nothing to do with natural levels or not. Those are localized events. They can be 
caused by the early operation of the gates when there is still ice on the river. 
 
 Those are six points that we presented in our letter to Mr. Ashton on May 10. I thank the 
committee for hearing me tonight. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Duerksen. 
 
* (19:40) 
 
Mr. Kelvin Goertzen (Steinbach): Thank you very much for your presentation. I appreciate your 
comments regarding the difference between no fault insurance and what Bill 23 proposes. Certainly, 
quite apart from the Charter argument, although perhaps you could make one there, there is also more 
of a policy argument in that I think when you are dealing with no-fault insurance you are dealing with 
two parties separate from government who have been involved in an accident, and the government 
steps in as a third party to administer a scheme, whereas here it is actually the government itself that 
has caused the harm through the operation of the floodway, and then they insulate themselves from the 
harm that they created. I think there is a substantial difference right there. 
 
 I wonder if you could indicate, you indicated that you wrote to the minister on May 10 regarding 
these concerns. What was the response from the minister? 
 
Mr. Duerksen: No response. Can I speak to that point again? 
 
Madam Chairperson: Yes, Mr. Duerksen. 
Mr. Duerksen: We received no response that I am aware of from the minister's office. We did copy 
the Conservative Party. The Conservative Party did phone me and say that there was this committee 
hearing tonight and that we should register to speak. 
 
Mr. Gerrard: Thanks for your presentation. You mentioned that there should be a process in the 
legislation with regard to the method used to determine what is artificial flooding. I just want to give 
you an opportunity to suggest what sort of might be elements of that process to help us in looking at 
what might be best in terms of changing the legislation if this were to proceed. 
 
Mr. Duerksen: The rating curve and the artificial flooding levels should be part of the environmental 
hearings by the CEC. Currently, it is not. It is not part of the project description, and it is not being 
heard in that venue. What the government of Manitoba has done here in our opinion is they have 
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piecemealed this project out. We have made this point countless times. We have made it at the first 
CEC hearing, a preliminary hearing about a week ago.  
 
 The point is that we have compensation legislation, we have floodway operating rules, and we 
have the floodway expansion project. They are all three separate streams right now requiring three 
separate submissions by people, requiring different arguments at different places. It is all one project 
and it needs to be tied together as such, okay.  
 
 The public has not been given any kind of a venue or the resources to hire engineers to 
independently verify the rating curve that has been presented by the government. That is what we 
would like. We would like funding through the CEC hearings. That is one possible way. They have 
intervenor status funding. There needs to be the resources given to the public at large that there is buy-
in, because there is a huge, huge mistrust between residents outside of the city of Winnipeg with the 
government of Manitoba with respect to this project at this point. That gap needs to be bridged. 
 
 One other point, in our letter we suggest also that to be open and transparent in this whole process 
the inlet and outlet structures should have elevation markings on them. They should have flow meters 
there so the public, anybody from the public can walk up, they can determine what the flow, what the 
elevation is and do their own calculations. It is not rocket science. It is fairly simple to do. 
 
Mr. Ashton: Thank you. I certainly would like to thank you for your presentation and 
correspondence. We have actually received some very good, detailed letters. I mentioned Doctor 
Shapiro before. Actually, given the importance of this bill for people who are impacted, we have made 
sure that each and every letter that we do receive is given full scrutiny. 
 
 I stress that a lot of the letters, and you have mentioned a number of the issues, go beyond the 
scope of the bill as well. I thought it was important that we not only respond in terms of the bill which 
is before us today but some of the broader floodway issues and certainly the point you raised about the 
appeal process. I indicated that I am anticipating once we are finished that we will be able to debate 
some amendments that we feel will address that concern. I also want to make sure that we are 
responding in detail to some of the other issues that were raised. I think that there were some very 
constructive points that were raised both in presentation today and the letters. Thank you very much. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Duerksen. 
 
 The next presenter is Ian Wishart from the Keystone Agricultural Producers. Mr. Wishart, do you 
have copies of your presentation to distribute? 
 
Mr. Ian Wishart (Keystone Agricultural Producers): Yes, I do. 
 
Madam Chairperson: The page will distribute those. You may proceed. 
 
Mr. Wishart: Good evening, Madam Chairperson, honourable members, ladies and gentlemen. I am 
here on behalf of Keystone Ag Producers, called KAP. I am pleased to share our organization's 
position with respect to Bill 23, The Red River Floodway Act. KAP is a democratically controlled 
general farm policy organization, representing and promoting the interests of agricultural producers in 
Manitoba, and it is an organization run and funded by its members' farm units throughout the 
province. 
 
 While we were pleased that compensation will be available for economic loss, as well as property 
damage, we would like to highlight some of our concerns with this bill and the impact it may have on 
those affected by artificial flooding.  
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 Within the new Ag Policy Framework, producers will lose their ability to have coverage for 
unseeded acreage at 100% government contribution, as was the case in the past. Therefore, one area 
that must receive fair and adequate compensation is in the event that land cannot be seeded due to 
overland flooding. This has a potential loss of income to producers for a long period, particularly 
because of the new safety net programs being implemented nationally. Agriculture is vastly different 
than other commercial businesses and this must be taken into consideration. 
 
 Section 2.5(1) deals with appeals of applications for compensation. While it does state the 
Disaster Assistance Appeal Board which is appointed under the EMO, The Emergency Measures Act 
determines, assesses or evaluates these appeals, it is not clear if the process will deal with appeals 
relating to market value of crops and/or a loss of income.  
 
 They have no history of working in this area. They have always refused these types of appeals 
before. It is imperative that farmers have the ability to appeal compensation for any activity or asset 
that may be impacted by artificial flooding. I am sure, in fact, that a rewrite of the mandate of the 
EMO appeals organization would have to be done to get them to deal with questions of economic loss. 
 
 Many times, when programs have been developed they have not been tested to see if they would 
work on the ground in the event of a disaster. The reality of how these programs work on the farm 
vastly differs from how they are promoted by governments. It would have been beneficial to see how 
compensation plans under this bill would be applied, as well as detailed components of coverage. We 
want to stress that any undue burden on our industry must be compensated for. 
 
 Another area not addressed in the bill is the potential for overland flooding as a result of the 
construction of the floodway expansion. If, for reasons caused by the construction, the floodway gates 
cannot be opened, there must be compensation for those affected. The Manitoba Floodway Authority 
has stated that, failing an emergency, the floodway will not operate in the summer during the project's 
2005 to 2009 construction phase, leaving ample opportunity for losses during that period. 
 
 In closing, we have kept our remarks very specific to the issue of compensation. We do have 
some other areas of concern and I will mention those briefly. But after having some discussion with 
the floodway people, we feel that that is not within the scope of this bill, but there are still areas of 
concern that I think you would want to hear. I would like to stress that farmers must not, in any way, 
be put at a disadvantage due to lack of compensation or criteria for application for compensation. 
 
* (19:50) 
 
 Just some of the other points, and these are not included in my written presentation, unfortunately. 
We did not mention the issue of ground and well water. I know they are looking at that and certainly 
there were changes in plans. Probably, we will reserve any of our comments on this until we see the 
final design, because it was certainly still in process.  
 
 Issues of local drainage have to be dealt with. They keep talking about that they are going to work 
on some of these and are trying to make improvements, but we do want to see the final design. The 
issue around the west dike expansion, there are a lot of concerns from the people in that particular 
area. Things like winter access in the area is impacted by it, also, access during periods of 
construction, as there are not many alternatives. It actually functions as the main road for the area. We 
are concerned about the loss of right to sue. I think that that is a major cause of concern. 
 
 It seems strange to us as we represent producers from all across Manitoba that we are dealing so 
specifically with compensation on the Red River Floodway, and we continue to forget issues around 
the Assiniboine Valley flooding caused by Shellmouth, or anything related to the Assiniboine River 



 17

diversion. It does seem like a double standard to us, and, frankly, we would find this very hard to 
defend to a lot of our members who represent those other areas. 
 
 Those are some of my comments, briefly. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Wishart. 
Mr. Gerrard: Thank you. I would like to ask you to comment specifically on two things.  
 
 One is that what I am hearing is that you feel a broader approach when it comes to agricultural 
lands would be better than one which is just specific to the operation of the floodway. Second, you 
deal with compensation in the event that land cannot be seeded, but if we are talking summer flood, 
problems with the floodway, what have you, not operating and lands being flooded, we are talking 
crops being drowned out. So there are clearly a variety of different circumstances where there could 
be agricultural producers adversely affected. Is that right? 
 
Mr. Wishart: Yes, Doctor Gerrard. You kind of touched on it. There are actually kind of three sets of 
circumstances where compensation will come into play. The first is if it stays wet for a prolonged 
period and producers will never get to sow that that particular year. In the past, we had programs in 
place in Manitoba called unseeded acreage insurance that all producers participated in. It was built 
into the basic crop insurance program. As long as you carried crop insurance, it was covered. 
 
 Under the Ag Policy Framework, as we are one of the few provinces to offer this, because it is 
almost specific to flood-prone areas in the country, it will be discontinued because it is national in 
scope. So now we are going to be in a position where the other way producers can get that is by 
buying it, paying good money out of their own pockets to get that. We think that creates a 
disadvantage to them to not have it. It leaves you at a situation under the new CAIS program, where 
your coverage levels will be impacted if you do not carry it on an ongoing basis. You have to protect 
yourself on that front too. So it does create quite a disadvantage. 
 
 You also mentioned that we could lose the crop after it is sowed, during the course of the summer. 
Now, we insure ourselves, generally speaking, against that through the crop insurance program. But 
should it not also be covered by this if it is generated by natural or by artificial flooding. Really, who 
should be paying on that? Should the crop insurance program, which is one-third producer money 
actually going up to 40 percent producer money, be paying that or should the Province be paying that? 
It is a good question. Then again, in the fall, to actually grow the crop and then not be able to get it 
off, another set of circumstances. 
Mr. Goertzen: Thank you very much, and thank you for your presentation here tonight on behalf of 
the organization. It is an interesting point you raised near the end of your presentation regarding 
potential for flooding as a result of the construction of the floodway and the inability to perhaps 
operate the floodway during those times. 
 
 Have you had the opportunity to raise those concerns prior with either the minister responsible for 
Disaster Financial Assistance, the Minister of Agriculture (Ms. Wowchuk), the Minister of Water 
Stewardship (Mr. Ashton), the Floodway Authority, and have you heard a response on that particular 
concern? 
 
Mr. Wishart: To be quite honest, we have not had time yet to make presentation on that particular 
point. It occurred to us fairly recently that what happens if we get a major rainfall event during the 
construction phase and it cannot function, we will obviously bear the brunt of that, as the largest 
landowners in Manitoba, farmers in particular. So I think we need to maybe look at that. We did 
mention that to the Floodway Authority, but of course that is not something they feel mandated to deal 
with. 
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Mr. Ashton: I would like to thank you for your presentation. Certainly, we look forward to any 
further feedback. I appreciate why KAP would focus on The Water Protection Act, which is a pretty 
comprehensive bill. It probably took the vast majority of your time. 
 
 Just on the issue of coverage, when you are dealing with extreme spring flooding, you are 
generally dealing with pre-seeding. Certainly, the act is designed to look at economic losses that 
would be impacted, for example, by delayed seeding. The definition of damage is quite broad, in 
terms of including economic losses, not just damage to property. That is quite different from Disaster 
Financial Assistance, which is very much focused in on damage to property. So I can certainly assure 
you that this goes far beyond crop insurance and actually anticipates the kind of scenario that is most 
likely, which is where you have unseeded crops. 
 
 So I appreciate the concern that has been raised. I think if you see the legislation, if we have the 
opportunity to discuss it in more detail, that broader concept of economic loss is built right in. That is 
very much keeping in mind the kind of situation that agriculture is often faced with. It is not the value 
of the seeds, it is the loss of income from delayed seeding or prevented seeding. Thank you very 
much. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Wishart. 
 
 Paul Clifton, private citizen. 
 
Mr. Paul Clifton (Private Citizen): Madam Chair, I wonder if I could seek leave and have a lady 
before gentleman, my wife first. My wife would like to present with a board, it is a poster board, a 
natural resources poster of the 1997 flood at flood crest; 2000 square kilometres were inundated in 
that flood. We would just like to put it up on a chair beside Maxine as she presents, if you grant me 
leave. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Okay, just a moment, please. Is there leave from the committee to allow a 
visual presentation to be used as part of this presentation? [Agreed] 
 
 Please come forward. Leave has been granted to allow Maxine Clifton to use a visual 
presentation. 
 

Mrs. Maxine Clifton (Private Citizen): I hate it when he does this to me.  
 

Madam Chairperson: Just a moment. Is there leave to allow Maxine Clifton to present? [Agreed] 
 
 Please proceed.  
 
Mrs. Clifton: Madam Chairperson and committee, thank you so much for coming out on the biggest 
hockey night of the year to listen to us. I wanted to show you on this map the area that I am from. I 
represent the Ritchot Concerned Citizens. 
 
 Can everyone see this? This is a map to identify Manitoba Conservation of the flood that occurred 
in 1997. I live right here as do the committee members that I represent. Grande Pointe is over here. 
Ste. Agathe is south. St. Adolphe is here. The west dike is over here. The water comes up from the 
south, hits the west dike, comes sloshing by the Turnbull Drive dike, the Cloutier dike, comes up into 
the neck of the floodway where we live.  
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 The Grande Pointe dike is now preventing any water from going this way so it is all going to 
come. We had water 10 feet deep in this area in 1997. It was all flowing in this direction. It was very 
high and very fast. So, when I talk about the legislation, I am representing the group of people that 
live in the neck, here.  
 
 Again, I thank you for coming out to hear us tonight. I want you all to know that this flood fight is 
our life. We have been at it continually for seven years. Although the 1997 flood might be a distant 
memory for all of you, I can tell you we are living it minute by minute. 
 
 I am here to talk about Bill 23. There are a couple of facts that you may or may not know. Back 
when they were deciding on a flood protection option for Winnipeg, Ste. Agathe detention structure 
was dismissed for a number of reasons, one of which was the necessity of obtaining flood easements 
from the residents there. 
 
* (20:00) 
 
 You may not know it but flood easements have never been obtained in the upstream area of the 
current floodway, possibly because there was a promise made at the construction of the floodway, 
verbally and in writing, that there would never be natural levels exceeded. That has occurred many 
times since the floodway was built, most recently with the summertime operation in 2002, where there 
was five feet of additional flooding. Our claim, among others, was denied because the damage caused 
by that was material losses. 
 
 Another point, the upstream area is guaranteed in a large flood to be completely inundated. This is 
just as likely to happen in 100 years, 50 years or even next year.  
 
 At a meeting this week, it was again confirmed that even with a 1997 flood equivalent, the water 
would be at the top of our brand new 1997-plus-two-feet flood protection levels and, quote, "The 
wake of a boat going by will overtop this protection, never mind any wind set up or rain at the time," 
unquote. 
 
 This indicates, among other known facts, that even though this project will be excellent for the 
provincial economy, Mr. Doer needs it desperately, Winnipeg needs it and Winnipeg needs it for 
sewer relief, that there are citizens who lose with this project and lose badly. The province has clearly 
advertised compensation issues would be dealt with in separate hearings, and now this has gone.  
 
 The IJC that is commonly touted recommends full and complete consultations with the upstream 
residents regarding flood protection, which has not been done. We have been in discussions for a year 
with a consultant who will assist us with negotiating a flood agreement so we can have some peace in 
our lives.  
 
 I should mention here that pleas for pre-flood buyouts when everything in our area was in ruins 
fell on deaf ears. Many months ago at a meeting with Mr. Ashton regarding the flood agreement, I was 
told by him there will be no negotiations and I said, "No negotiations?" and he repeated there would 
be no negotiations. This is directly opposite to what the IJC recommends and an affront to what the 
affected citizens need. 
 
 There remain several outstanding flood claims stemming from the 1997 flood and upcoming 
claims for damages for summertime operation in 2002. Unfortunately, Mr. Ashton was misinformed 
that there was only one, as he said in the House, but I assure him there are several. The Province and 
the affected residents are currently before the courts on this very issue with the Province continuing to 
deny, despite all evidence, that there was any artificial flooding in '97 and further that the Province has 
any liability in regard to the damage that went well above DFA guidelines. 
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 Perhaps this action should be settled before moving on. Those of us who understand the truth, we 
cannot even sell out until our claims are settled. Many of the people in our area have decided that 
when people are well enough assured that the floodway is going to be good, their properties will 
immediately be for sale if you do not have a big mortgage against it. Because the Province clearly will 
not, nor has any mechanisms to act on our concerns, but merely hear them through consultations, it is 
the aim of our community to move the upcoming hearings into a federal panel review where we will 
insist that a compensation package that we were completely shut out of and has some ghastly holes in 
it is not considered by the citizens of Canada to be mitigation. 
 
 If the Province refuses to negotiate, then we can say, well, we do not want to be flooded. In order 
for Canada to fund this project, agreed-upon mitigation must be part of the project description. The 
chair of the CEC has already told us that mitigation or compensation is outside the scope of the CEC 
and will not be discussed. This is completely unacceptable for us and any Canadian or Manitoba 
citizen. It is completely insulting that the Province clearly in a conflict of interest here has even 
proposed taking away our right to sue, showing no faith in this legislation themselves. 
 
 Part of this legislation, as you may know, simply assumes the right to flood us and to store water 
on our property, which has to be illegal, if not immoral. It is gratifying to see this work started, but 
please do not yet recommend this legislation, as there is more work to be done. It is a very, very 
difficult position for an average citizen like myself to have to prepare to be painted by the Province as 
those people who are against floodway expansion. It is of course untrue. It is also unclear why the 
Province is proceeding in the manner it is when we just as easily could have been allies. 
 
 The manner in which we were dealt with by the Province and EMO, who will again be 
administering this package, was the very worst experience we have ever known or imagined and can 
never be repeated. We feel unsafe and we are unsafe where we live, and so we are not truly free. Our 
society cannot accept this or expect citizens to bear this for the salvation of another community. I 
respectfully ask you to refer this package for negotiation with the impacted citizens. Thank you. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much. 
 

Mr. Goertzen: Thank you very much for your very impassioned presentation, Mrs. Clifton. It was 
very informative. Certainly, I appreciate you also setting the record straight regarding the number of 
outstanding claims regarding 1997. We have heard several times the minister refer to there only being 
one claim. I hope that your comments today will prevent him from making that assertion again in the 
future. 
 
 I wonder if you could go into a little bit more depth in terms of the independent consultant and the 
flood agreement that you said that you might be looking at in negotiation. What components are you 
looking at in terms of that type of an agreement? 
Floor Comment: We have been talking– 
 
Madam Chairperson: Mrs. Clifton, just a minute. 
 
Mrs. Clifton: Sorry. I am not accustomed to this formality. We have a consultant on board that if he 
works for us, obviously he is going to require payment. His claim to fame is negotiating flood 
agreements. He has worked across Canada, but, surprisingly, most of his business has proven to be in 
Manitoba. He has experience with Aboriginal flooding rights. We happen to be his first European 
clients. 
 



 21

Mr. Gerrard: Thank you for your presentation. Just so you can clarify one thing for me, you say that 
even if there was a '97 level flood, that you would likely be flooded at '97 plus two. Is that because of 
the positioning of the Grande Pointe dike? 
 
Mrs. Clifton: No. I appreciate you asking that question, Doctor Gerrard. The latest information from 
the minister's office has declared that the floodway does not have to be dug as deep as originally 
thought and that it will be more shallow. I am a little fuzzy on detail here, but my trusty husband will 
answer. The fact that the floodway will not have to be as deep as originally thought is going to cost us 
in terms of more artificial flooding than originally thought. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you.  
 
* (20:10) 
 
Mr. Ashton: Thank you, and I appreciate your presentation. One thing that I want to indicate, too. I 
appreciate that there has been legal action going back to 1999. We are somewhat restricted, obviously, 
in terms of getting into the details of the legal action. One thing I do want to assure you is we did take 
the initiative recently of putting in place a mediation process which did result, I know, in some 
settlements. There are still some ongoing concerns about the process that was put in place. I know you 
had not contacted me on this, but some other people had who were part of the process. I do not know 
if this is your view or not, but I was asked to review the mediation process. We will be doing that as 
well, in addition to the process that did take place with Justice Nurgitz.  
 
 Like I said, there may be some possible legal action which does make it difficult for either one of 
us to get into the details. But I certainly want to indicate that we will be doing that because the claims 
are all in the artificial flooding. The argument is that there was artificial flooding. It is outside of DFA 
where, in fact, there was only one case outstanding. I do want to indicate that I have given the 
undertaking a look at the mediation process as well. I know at least one claim, and even though they 
did sign, I believe, a settlement, they felt that there were problems. So we are going to look at the 
process itself, because it was intended to try and see if there was some way outside of the court 
process. So thanks very much. 
 
Mrs. Clifton: Since Mr. Ashton brought up the mediation, may I comment?  
 
Madam Chairperson: Please, Mrs. Clifton, go ahead. 
 
Mrs. Clifton: The mediation was an underhanded attack. There was no mediation. Judge Nurgitz 
freely admitted he did not have a chance to mediate or act as a judge. Half of the claimants out of our 
group were bullied into accepting a single-digit settlement. The rest of us could not do that. That is all 
I will say. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much for your presentation. 
 
Mrs. Clifton: Thank you.  
 
Madam Chairperson: Mr. Clifton, do you have a presentation for the committee? 
 
Mr. Clifton: Yes, I do. I have actually distributed it early and it is quite extensive. I will try and be 
brief.  
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you. Mr. Clifton, I just want to give you a preamble. You have 10 
minutes for your presentation, and then 5 minutes for questions from the committee. So, whenever 
you are ready, please proceed. 
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Mr. Clifton: Could you not start the clock until we fix this mike? I need it turned up so that I can get 
it up to here, so I do not have to stand down here. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Sure, we can do that for you. 
 
Mr. Clifton: Thank you, Madam Chair. I should explain what I have got before the group. I had made 
representation to the Clerk of the House asking that I be allowed to present in a video format to date 
stamp a particular issue. The Clerk of the House advised that she had to talk with the House leaders, 
the Opposition House Leader, Government House Leader, in that in 1990 there was a ruling that "thou 
shall not allow videos and the like." I made representation, and I understand that Gord Mackintosh and 
Leonard Derkach met and talked about it, and they disallowed that we could do any sort of a 
presentation in storyboard form, video or the like. 
 
 On this video is a video representation on CBC national TV, May 2, 1997, May 4, 1997, The 
Inundation of the Upstream Valley, and that is important that it is date stamped here. There are also 
background records.  
 
 My name is Paul Clifton. I am a resident of the R.M. of Ritchot, that we now call the community 
of Howden, Manitoba. We are clustered on the southern edge of the city of Winnipeg.  
 
 I wish to first observe that yesterday we, as Canadians, from sea to sea to sea acknowledged the 
brave and unselfish contribution some 60 years ago by men and women of Canada in the D-day 
invasion of Normandy. This in defence of our value of democracy, freedom and way of governance 
that we hold dear to this day. 
 
 Then tonight, a day after this sombre remembrance of a commitment by many, I feel myself in a 
committee room of the Manitoba Legislature to speak on a draconian piece of legislation. The most 
draconian yet to be tabled in this House of democracy. Clearly, it is an affront to the fundamental 
observations of a citizen's rights possible. This is to remove the right of impartial review of 
government decisions, actions or lack thereof to the courts of this province. The rights of citizens to be 
legislated away with little or no strenuous voice from opposition, save for the Member for Morris, 
Mavis Taillieu, and the Leader of the Liberal Party, Mr. Jon Gerrard, and his colleague.  
 
 The court was in the vision of the late Pierre Elliott Trudeau and his repatriation of the 
Constitution to have government actions of legislative review at higher court than the government, to 
the highest court of the land, the Supreme Court of Canada. The court would be a check and a balance 
against the abuse of government  of the day.  
 
 That said, I will be speaking tonight in reference to two reference packages, the first a spiral-
bound book and five additional pages paginated. I did not have time. I received the one this morning 
at six-fifteen in the morning from Environment Canada out of Ottawa. So it is numbered page 44, I 
believe. I did not get a chance to number the next pages, but it is 45, 46, 47 and 48. I will make 
reference to those as I go.  
 
 The second book is titled Supplementary Background. Records will be used to demonstrate the 
government of Manitoba and the government of Canada's true actions as relates Red River flooding 
induced upstream on citizens of Canada and citizens of Manitoba.  
 
 I will be detailing from the available public record past actions of the current government, to 
shelter records fundamental to complete an unbiased review of this legislation and the project Red 
River Floodway Expansion to continued action of Manitoba to shelter records of its participation with 
the Government of Canada on or about May 1, 1997, under the floodway emergency operation to 
inundate the upstream area for the exclusive salvation of the city of Winnipeg. 



 23

 
 With the proposed legislation now to remove the right of judicial review relying solely on two 
Manitoba government institutions, that of Manitoba EMO and the adjudication of disputes to the 
Disaster Assistance Appeal Board for compensation issues, I will be detailing the sheltering of 
Manitoba commission records and post-amalgamation operations by Ernst & Young and its 
appendices of public scrutiny.  
 
 I will be strongly recommending that these two items of record be provided to the committee of 
the House, you folks, to Manitobans and to Canadians, for that matter, without exclusion or severing 
of portions except for personal names to protect personal identity.  
 
 I will be demanding from the Government House Leader that he petition his federal counterpart, 
the honourable Jacques Saada, Government House Leader, Minister responsible for Democratic 
Reform, to undertake and initiate a comprehensive judicial review of matters of Red River flood 
control in the province of Manitoba, this to cover from the date of the government's deal, that is, 
Canada and Manitoba, to wilfully and deliberately flood the valley and forward to the present date, to 
today.  
 
 I will be demanding that the issue of environmental assessment of the Floodway Expansion 
Project be moved following judicial review to mediation. This by the Premier of Manitoba, 
immediately advising the Minister of Environment, Mr. David Anderson, that he wishes to most 
expediently advance Manitoba flood protection and his full and complete support of the option of 
mediation under The Canadian Environmental Assessment Act. This is the best option for Manitobans 
and Canadians to see Red River Valley flood protection, including flood protection for the city of 
Winnipeg.  
 
 I am going to start from the spiral-bound book to start. First is a reply from Water Stewardship on 
an access to information request. I will note that I have been chasing federal records for six years. 
How can you fix something, how can you make it better with understanding how it was supposed to 
work? That is where it started. Six years later, I am down to the deal between the Government of 
Canada and the government of Manitoba, that I will be detailing later, to inundate the valley. To date 
full compensation by Canada and Manitoba has not been received by residents affected by that deal. 
 
* (20:20) 
 
 The first two pages are Water Stewardship denying me access to these records. The third page is 
my letter to the Ombudsman on a complaint currently before the Ombudsman in which I allege there 
was a deal between the Government of Canada, the mayor of the City of Winnipeg and the Premier of 
the day of the government of Manitoba to initiate an emergency operation of the floodway. Also, I 
note at the end that the Ernst & Young investigation and the lack of release of the Ernst & Young 
report of how EMO actually does operate was denied after a year and a half of research by the 
Ombudsman. 
 
 Further to that, letter to your partner, the Government of Canada, that wants very much to partner 
with Manitoba, but they cannot partner if you are screwing upstream Canadians.  
 Page 6, Suzanne Hurtubise, deputy minister of Environment, recommends strongly to Manitoba 
that those two pages be provided to Mr. Clifton to help get to the truth here. The Province is still not 
going that way. 
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 The next page, No. 7, Ombudsman report, where the Ernst & Young report of the amalgamation 
of the Disaster Financial Assistance and EMO, that it was amalgamated by the Filmon government in 
1996, is not being released. So the very body that is going to pay damages to us, you are not telling me 
how they really operate. 
 
 Page 11: Fundamental to democratic rights is the right to government records, the right to our 
records. We are government. We pay the taxes. We ensure integrity through the right to access. The 
dates on all this stuff are very important. In 1998, I requested information specific to federal approval 
of the operating rules for the Red River Floodway. 
 
 Page 12, I had to pay money to get that information, and, subsequently, there was a change of 
government. On page 13, Mr. Doer was in government and he talked very highly of what he would do. 
He would get folks behind closed doors and he would solve this problem. So I sent an access request 
to the Government of Canada in 2000 with the new government in place, thinking that there would be 
transparency, as recommended by the IJC. Subsequently, I met Mr. Doer on the floodway, as Mr. 
Doer and company were flooding us again unnecessarily. I challenged Mr. Doer, and in writing I 
challenged Mr. Doer, on April 16, 2001, saying: "Mr. Doer, you are sheltering the federal approval 
records. You do not have approval to operate this floodway and you are sheltering," I thought at the 
time, "13 pages." As it turns out, he was sheltering 11 pages. He corresponded through his department 
to Environment Canada and said: "Release 9 of 11 records to Mr. Clifton," and they were released. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Mr. Clifton, I want to just tell you, you have 30 seconds remaining in your 
presentation. 
 
Mr. Clifton: The last page of the second brief is a deal. This is where the director of PFRA bought–
after the Municipality of Ritchot refused to sign-off on the operating rules because they were not in 
the best interests of the valley residents, the director of PFRA, Mr. Erminio Caligiuri, circumvented 
the rights of all Canadians in that he usurped the requirement that the federal government be at arm's 
length to provinces. If monies come to municipalities, those monies come to the municipalities 
through Manitoba, not Canada. Mr. Erminio Caligiuri usurped the rights of citizens of Manitoba by 
buying approval for the operating rules as– 
 
Madam Chairperson: Mr. Clifton, I am sorry, we will have to conclude. You have time for one last 
sentence. 
 
Mr. Clifton: We cannot proceed on floodway expansion on lies and deceit. We have $660 million to 
spend. It might be a billion and it might be 1.4 billion, but we are going to do it right. The record is 
there. The record is presently on the federal public registry and the provincial public registry. You will 
be unable to license this project. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you, Mr. Clifton. Does the committee have questions for Mr. Clifton? 
 
Mr. Goertzen: Thank you very much, Mr. Clifton, for your very detailed presentation. I look forward 
to going through in more detail the documentation you have provided here this evening. 
 
 Certainly, Mrs. Taillieu has spoken well about your knowledge on this issue. She is presently 
attending another committee hearing in the Legislature. I know she would have appreciated being here 
and I will be certain to pass along these documents to her, as well, if she has not already received 
copies of those documents. 
 
 Regarding the issue of litigation, specifically, could you indicate for the committee the allowance 
to appeal to the courts? Should that be separate and apart from the scheme altogether? What I am 
asking then is, when somebody has a compensation claim, should they have the choice of whether or 
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not to go through the appeal, the legislated compensation scheme, or to the courts, or would it be 
acceptable if they were kind of mandated to go through the legislated scheme first but still have the 
right after that, et cetera, to go to the courts? 
 
Mr. Clifton: There is a bit of a charade, and it comes back to the International Joint Commission. I 
am sorry, I cannot make a short answer, but the International Joint Commission has tasked Mr. Lloyd 
Axworthy, detailed, to study valley-wide flood protection. We are not anywhere near studying valley-
wide flood protection. The government engineers have determined that we are going to flood-protect 
Winnipeg, irrespective of valley-wide issues. The Province of Manitoba cannot afford to operate a 
floodway if they cannot empond water on private property. They have to negotiate the right to empond 
water on private property on an annual basis because it could flood in any year. 
 
 We are not talking about a legislated right to take my rights away to seek judicial review through 
the courts. Ten minutes goes by very quickly, but I will detail where Maxine did not have the 
knowledge. Under this judicially assisted mediation, there were 10 families that were brutalized by the 
Province of Manitoba. They were offered the thought: "If you settle now, we will not charge you 
costs." They took these folks, with an aggregate loss of $2.4 million, and out of the 10 families they 
pieced up $365,000. On average, that is about 10 percent of their loss, and they were forced to sign a 
confidential agreement that they could not even tell their mother they were brutalized by the Province 
of Manitoba. 
 
Mr. Gerrard: You have made what I think is a very important point that the lack of appeal to normal 
court procedures is terrible. It seems to me, and maybe you would comment, there are some fairly 
complex issues here in dealing with flooding and there needs to be an ability to have a review which is 
carried out by a court which is independent of government in order to protect citizens because of the 
complex nature of the circumstances around flooding and the potential for government to be heavy-
handed in its approach. 
 
Mr. Clifton: We have been encumbered by the statute of limitations in the province that you have two 
years or possibly six years. Very interestingly though, in the Federal Court of Canada, there is no 
statute. I bring to you an example. The Residential Schools issue, where 30 years ago a wrong was 
perpetuated among Aboriginal people, is in the courts now. This will move to the courts, and it will 
delay, but it will go to the Federal Court of Canada. All folks, Government of Manitoba, City of 
Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, will be named in the Federal Court of Canada and we will solve 
this. That is counter-productive to most expedient flood protection of the Red River Valley, including 
the city of Winnipeg. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you very much, Mr. Clifton, for your presentation. 
 
 Gaile Whelan-Enns from the Manitoba Wildlands. Is Gaile Whelan-Enns here? Her name will be 
dropped to the bottom of the list. 
 
 Doug Chorney, private citizen. Mr. Chorney, do you have a presentation to distribute to the 
committee members? 
 
Mr. Doug Chorney (Private Citizen): I do, I have 20 copies. 
 
Madam Chairperson: Thank you, please proceed whenever you are ready. 
 
Mr. Chorney: Madam Chairperson, I thank the committee for the opportunity to speak regarding Bill 
23. I am Anthony Douglas Chorney, life-long resident of East Selkirk. I hold an undergraduate degree 
in Agricultural Engineering from the University of Manitoba. I am a registered professional engineer 
in the province of Manitoba, and I am currently self-employed operating a grain and vegetable farm in 
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the R.M. of St. Clements. I am a member of the Keystone Agricultural Producers and part of the 
District 5 executive.  
 
* (20:30) 
 
 Many shortcomings in Bill 23 require amendment prior to final passage. I will briefly highlight 
the points which require the committee's consideration. Part I Definitions. "Artificial flooding" This is 
much too vague. Area residents who have experienced flooding caused by ice jams north of Lockport 
have historically linked the onset of high water volumes to the operation of the current floodway. This 
flood event is indeed artificial. When challenged, the government denies the link. This happened in 
the spring of 2004. Another definition, "natural level." Flooding in the absence of the floodway. That 
is what is used in the definition that the floodway does not exist, but, in fact, we have been told by the 
Manitoba Floodway Expansion Authority the current floodway is considered state of nature in all 
modelling of flood impacts. Why is this excluded from the definition in the act? 
 
 Eligible property, Part 2.2(c), flood-proofing initiatives which have been available south of 
Winnipeg have been denied to residents north of Winnipeg. Will this change in the future? The MFEA 
has made public presentations which predict flooding near the PTH 4 bridge in the event of a large 
flood. Why is state of nature deemed to be acceptable for all Manitoba residents outside the floodway 
and not acceptable to residents inside the floodway? 
 
  Part 4, General Provisions, Protection from Liability. Why, if the government only exists to act in 
the best possible public interest, is it necessary to have liability protection? Would it not be necessary 
only if the government is planning to knowingly violate the law or constitutional human rights? Any 
justification of individuals' sacrifice for the benefit of the majority of the public would surely need 
mitigation and/or remedy rather than avail of legal protection. I trust the public interests can never 
outweigh individual rights.  
 
 Groundwater. I understand the intention of The Red River Floodway Act is to address issues of 
damages caused by the construction and operation of the floodway system because it is a system. 
However, the new act fails to address the most significant environmental issues surrounding the 
project. I reluctantly bring this issue to your attention as it seems that if included in the act, the public 
again would have no legal recourse or remedy available by legal liability protection which the 
government is going to have with this act. However, the issue of groundwater supply and quality is 
paramount and cannot be avoided in any discussion about the floodway as it exists today or the 
planned expansion in the future. 
 
 The KGS Engineering Project Description published in July of 2003 predicts 5200 water wells 
will experience some degree of draw down as a result of the floodway expansion project. Intrusion of 
Red River water to the aquifer is a risk from the Birds Hill area north to Lockport. The reports 
suggests further study is required to define the scope of the problem. The project description includes 
well water mitigation as a line item in the project budget. 
 
Mr. Vice-Chairperson in the Chair 
 
 The MFEA has commissioned further studies and I give them credit for that and now believe the 
risks are of such magnitude that a redesign of the floodway expansion is necessary. The floodway will 
no longer be deepened to the planned 6.5 feet. Deepening will be avoided where possible and will be 
limited to a maximum of 2 feet. I believe that no single technical opinion should be used when risking 
a resource as important as groundwater. 
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 The importance of groundwater to my community including the town of Selkirk and agricultural 
industry is critical to our long-term sustainability and viability. My farm operation, like many local 
residents depends on groundwater for domestic consumption, agricultural applications and geothermal 
heating. My personal residence is heated and air-conditioned using a geothermal well to well heat 
pump. Any loss of supply of water quality or supply quantity would be of tremendous economic 
hardship to our area. 
 
 In conclusion, I ask the committee to consider the implications of Bill 23 before passing it into 
law. 
 
Mr. Goertzen: Mr. Chorney, thank you very much for your presentation. You certainly touched on 
some of the issues that other presenters have touched on and there seems to be something of a 
consensus growing around the inability for court action and such things. In your comments on 
artificial flooding and the effect that you had this spring in terms of the ice jams, that intrigued me in 
particular because you had kind of a real-life situation that would not necessarily fall under the act, 
and you question whether or not it would fall under the act to artificial flooding. Could you provide 
some suggestions, perhaps, on how that vagueness on the term artificial flooding could be addressed? 
Do you have any thoughts on that, in particular, in relation to the concern that you raised about the ice 
jams this spring? 
 
Mr. Chorney: It is an intangible number and it gives the act broadening, sweeping flexibility because 
the definition can be disputed. If you look back to 1826 there was no Highway 44 or Highway 59, 
natural drainage, municipal drainage projects; so what is natural pre-1826, 1997, 2004? It is a very 
vague concept. It is a very poor way to base remedying or compensating people who are impacted by 
flood waters specifically that are man-made. One cannot dispute the fact that the floodway as it exists 
today is a man-made structure and that it will have an impact on waters entering the river at Lockport. 
 
Mr. Ashton: I appreciate your comments on the definition of artificial flooding and have indicated 
that there has been the same amount of engineering work that has been going into getting to the root of 
a lot of the issues here you are referring to, because when you start having concepts, in this case, in 
legislation, clearly we wanted to insure that the state-of-the-art terms of the scientific data that is there 
and I certainly would appreciate any feedback you have from your own professional perspective on 
the work they have been doing. 
 
 The only point that I wanted to raise though on the groundwater–I appreciate your presentation 
and the fact that you indicated the mitigation that will be there as part of the redesign of the floodway–
I want to indicate that that was very much driven by the principle of maintaining the flood protection 
but minimizing groundwater impacts. I just wanted to indicate that in addition to that, I think, you 
have acknowledged that, that it is also another aspect of the floodway as well which is the actual 
mitigation in terms of wells. I mean, we are trying to design the minimum impact on groundwater but 
if there are any impacts with wells that is a specific element of the floodway expansion budget, but 
obviously, as you have pointed out the more we can minimize groundwater impacts, other presenters 
made, the better our hope is to not use that line in the floodway authority budget if we have to and the 
latest engineering work is very encouraging. This act, in fact, will get the flood proofing without the 
impact on groundwater, so I appreciate your presentation.  
 
Mr. Gerrard: Thank you for your presentation. 
 
 My question actually has to do with the groundwater and the wells. The area where you are now, 
was the groundwater affected by the original floodway construction? How common are the 
geothermal wells, to well heat pumps, and so on, that you are using to heat your home? What would 
be your recommendation in terms of how compensation should be approached in terms of ground 
water problems? 
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Mr. Chorney: Well, certainly, the effects of the original floodway construction were noticed most 
evidently at a farm near Lockport, where the well water level drawdown was 60 feet, and they were 
never compensated for that, and they had to make a new well. That level never recovered.  
 
 In the KGS engineering studies that I have read, the drawdown effect after the original 
construction of the floodway recovered by the early seventies to the vast majority of landowners. 
However, many local residents have claimed that their water level has, in fact, stayed low. 
 
* (20:40) 
 
 The geothermal heating system is quite common. There are various options, well-to-well loops, 
in-ground loops. Manitoba Hydro is now encouraging Power Smart geothermal heating. I built my 
house and installed the system 13 years ago because I saw it as a logical thing to do.  
 
Madam Chairperson in the Chair 
 
 It is growing in importance and, I think, popularity, and I think we should not do anything to hurt 
that advantage that Manitoba has as a resource. 
 
 Thirdly, the compensation. I am appalled at the– 
 

Madam Chairperson: Mr. Chorney, I am sorry to interrupt you. Your time has come to an end. 
Thank you.  
 
Mr. Chorney: I thank the committee.  
 

Madam Chairperson: We have one presenter listed for Bill 31, The Floodway Authority Act. Is 
Gaile Whelan-Enns from the Manitoba Wildlands present here? Her name will be dropped to the 
bottom of the list.  
 
 This is the second time we are reading for Bill 23, The Red River Floodway Act. Gaile Whelan-
Enns, from the Manitoba Wildlands? No? Seeing that she is not present, her name is dropped off the 
list. 
 
 For Bill 31, The Floodway Authority Act. Once again, Gaile Whelan-Enns, from the Manitoba 
Wildlands? No? Seeing that Ms. Whelan-Enns is not present, her name is dropped off the list.  
 
 That concludes the list of presenters that I have before me this evening. Are there any other 
persons in attendance who wish to make a presentation? 
 
 Seeing none, is it the will of the committee to proceed with detailed clause by clause 
consideration of bills 10, 23, 31, 33, 34, 35 and 38? Agreed? [Agreed] 
 Is it the will of the committee to proceed in numerical order for each one of the bills that I have 
read? Agreed, to go in numerical order for each one of the bills? [Agreed] Thank you.  
 
































